ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 2, 2004
9:10 a. m

TAPE(S) 04- 32, 33
MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senat or Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senat or Hollis French

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Gene Therri aul t
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 319

"An Act relating to clains for personal injury or wongful death
against health care providers; and providing for an effective
date."

SENATE BILL NO 323

"An Act relating to a project owner's liability for workers’
conpensation and the exclusiveness of liability for workers'
conpensation.”

SENATE BILL NO 170

"An Act relating to the Code of Crimnal Procedure; relating to
defenses, affirmative defenses, and justifications to certain
crimnal acts; relating to rights of prisoners after arrest;
relating to discovery, immunity from prosecution, notice of
defenses, admissibility of certain evidence, and right to
representation in crimnal proceedings; relating to sentencing,
probation, and discretionary parole; anending Rule 16, Al aska
Rules of Crimnal Procedure, and Rules 404, 412, 609, and 803,
Al aska Rul es of Evidence; and providing for an effective date."

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 2, 2004



BILL: SB 319
SHORT TI TLE: CLAI MS AGAI NST HEALTH CARE PROVI DERS

SPONSOR('s): SENATOR(s) SEEKI NS

02/ 11/ 04 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 04 (S) L&C, JUD

03/ 02/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 02/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 02/ 04 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 11/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 11/ 04 (S Moved SB 319 Qut of Committee
03/ 11/ 04 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 12/ 04 (S) L& RPT  2DNP 3NR

03/ 12/ 04 (S NR: BUNDE, SEEKINS, STEVENS G
03/ 12/ 04 (S) DNP: FRENCH, DAVI S

03/ 17/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 17/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 04 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

BILL: SB 323
SHORT TI TLE: WORKERS COVPENSATI ON AND CONTRACTORS

SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) SEEKI NS
02/ 13/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 13/ 04 (S) L&C, JUD

03/ 04/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 04/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 04/ 04 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 09/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 09/ 04 (S) Moved SB 323 Qut of Committee
03/ 09/ 04 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 10/ 04 (S) L&C RPT 2DP 2NR 1AM

03/ 10/ 04 (S) DP: BUNDE, SEEKINS; NR. DAVI S,
03/ 10/ 04 (S) STEVENS G AM FRENCH

03/ 17/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 17/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 04 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 02/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 170

SHORT TI TLE: CRIM NAL LAW SENTENCI NG PROBATI OV PAROLE

SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

04/ 04/ 03 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
04/ 04/ 03 (S) JuD, FIN

04/ 11/ 03 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

SENATE JUD COW TTEE Apri |

2, 2004



04/ 11/ 03 (S <Bill Hearing Postponed to 4/14/03>

04/ 14/ 03 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
04/ 14/ 03 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 15/ 03 (S JUD AT 5:00 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 15/ 03 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 15/ 03 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 24/ 03 (S) JUD AT 4: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 24/ 03 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 24/ 03 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

05/ 14/ 03 (S JUD AT 0: 00 AM BELTZ 211

05/ 14/ 03 (S -- Meeting Postponed to 5/15/03 --
05/ 15/ 03 (S JUD AT 8:45 AM BELTZ 211

05/ 15/ 03 (S -- Meeting Rescheduled from5/14/03 --
05/ 16/ 03 (S) JUD AT 1:00 PM BELTZ 211

05/ 16/ 03 (S <Above |Item Renoved from Agenda>
05/ 16/ 03 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 05/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 05/ 04 (S <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

03/ 10/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 10/ 04 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 10/ 04 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 12/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 12/ 04 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 12/ 04 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 24/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 24/ 04 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 24/ 04 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 29/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 29/ 04 (S -- Meeting Canceled --

03/ 31/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 31/ 04 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 31/ 04 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 31/ 04 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
03/ 31/ 04 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 31/ 04 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

W TNESS REG STER

MR. DEAN GUANELI, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Crimnal D vision

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT:  Opposed anendnent 2 and commented on
Amendnent 3 to SB 170.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 2, 2004



V5. LI NDA W LSON, Deputy Director
Publ i ¢ Def ender Agency

Department of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 170.

Ms. Kathy Dale CPA
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: (Opposes SB 319.

M. Richard Louie

British Petrol eum

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Qpposes SB 319.

Ms. Panel a LaBol | e, President

Al aska St ate Chanber of Comrerce

217 Second St. Ste. 201

Juneau, AK 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 323.

M. Jack MIler, Attorney

St at e Chanmber of Commerce

217 Second St. Ste. 201

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 323.

Ms. Eden Larson, President & CEO
Associ ated Buil ders and Contractors
No address provi ded

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 323.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-32, SIDE A

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:10 a.m Senators Therriault,
Qgan, French and Seekins were present. The first order of

busi ness to cone before the commttee was SB 170.

"#SB170
SB 170 - CRI M NAL LAW SENTENCI NG PROBATI OV PAROLE

SENATOR OGAN noved to adopt version | as the working docunent
before the commttee. Wthout objection, the notion carried.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 2, 2004



MR. DEAN GUANELI, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Crim nal
Di vision, Departnent of Law, thanked the conmittee for the hard
work it has done on SB 170. He then offered to answer questions.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked M. CGuaneli to standby because the commttee
was given two proposed anendnents from the Public Defender's
O fice on short notice.

SENATOR OGAN referred to Section 17 on page 10 of version I,
regarding violation of custodian's duti es, and said he
understands the intent but has spoken with foster parents who
have ended up being third parties for foster children who got in
trouble. He said the intent is to go after people who blatantly
disregard their duty and are not diligent about holding the
rel eased party accountable. He said Senator French nade sone
excellent points about the risk to the public when people fall
down on those duties. He pointed out that in reality, sone
infractions do not get reported. For exanple, if the court
orders the offender to be at hone by 10:00 and the custodi an
does not report the offender at 10:01 for not being hone, the
custodian could be gqguilty of a class A msdeneanor if the
of fender was a felon. He expressed concern that the idea is to
hol d people accountable and not to crimnalize every mnor
infraction, but the bill is not witten that way.

MR. GUANELI said he had a couple of responses to Senator Qgan's
concerns. He said he does not believe Section 17 covers a
situation of foster parents whose children get in trouble. Line
12 specifically refers to a person released under AS 12.30,
which are the bail statutes. He said theoretically that could
i nvol ve soneone under 18 who is charged with drunk driving, but
nost juvenile offenses are dealt with in juvenile court, which
falls under Title 47. He conti nued:

If the court says sonething like '"be in at dark,"

think there's a range of reasonabl eness that has to be
applied but if a judge thinks it's inportant enough
that a person have a specific curfew at a specific

hour, then | guess then the question is - and the
judge directs the custodian, you know, if this person
isn't in by 10:00, I'm ordering you to imrediately
report that to the police - are you willing to do
that? Yes | am your honor. You understand that there
are penalties associated with that? Yes | do, your
honor, and I"'mstill wlling to do that.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 2, 2004



| guess to ne it's a judicial decision that 10:00 is
nore inportant than 10:01 and 1'd rather leave it to
the judge to meke that decision than soneone who has
undertaken responsibility and given a promse to the
judge that they would undertake that responsibility.
And when you're tal king about people who are rel eased
on felony offenses, | think that that is a weighty
responsibility. |1 know the judge is always very good
about meking sure the custodian understands their
duties so | guess |I'd have to say | think the system
works by allowing the judge to nmake a determ nation
whether 10:00 is so inportant or whether daylight
hours, which gives them a little nore flexibility.
That's ny response.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he agrees that with adult offenses where the
conditions of release are the conditions of inprisonnent, they
woul d have no leeway if they were in jail. He said if he agreed
to take on a certain responsibility, he should live up to the
terms of that agreenent. He believes that provision was neant to
protect the public as nmuch as anything else. He then said when
one tal ks about the boundaries of an infraction, the infraction
beconmes a whole new term

SENATOR FRENCH said the Municipality of Anchorage has had this
law on its books for a couple of years at |east and he is not
aware  of any third party custodians being egregiously
over char ged. He said the legislation is crafted to relate the
penalty to the offense and every person has the right to go
before a jury if charged with a crinme. He doubted a jury would
convict a person for not reporting a 10:01 violation on a 10:00
curfew

SENATOR THERRI AULT said a constituent asked him to consider a
potential anendnent. The constituent is a referee who was
assaulted by a parent as the result of his officiating a gane.
The constituent asked him to consider creating a heightened
crinme for assaulting a sports official. He countered by saying
he would consider adding that crime to the |ist of aggravators
for sentencing. The legal drafters suggested adding a nunber 31
to AS 12.55.155. He read the proposed anendnent:

The def endant know ngly directed t he conduct
constituting the offense at a sports official or
referee during or because of the exercise of duties as
a sports official or referee.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 2, 2004



He asked M. GQuaneli if he had any comments on whether such an
anmendnent woul d be wor kabl e.

MR. GUANELI said that when presunptive sentencing circunscribes
the sentencing discretion, an aggravating factor can allow the
judge to go beyond that. Aggravating factors currently apply to
those who knowingly direct illegal conduct toward a police
of ficer or energency responder. He noted that a few bills were
recently introduced to expand the coverage to include teachers,
education officials and possibly clergynmen. He said the concern
is whether the legislature wants to expand aggravating factors
that were provided for people involved in inherently dangerous
occupations to a w der range of activities that people engage
in. He said that is a matter of legislative policy. He concl uded
that when the judges feel the conduct is egregious enough, the
judge has the sentencing authority to address that so he was not
certain that expanding those protections to a referee is
necessary to achi eve justice.

SENATOR OGAN said he has trouble creating different classes of
people for which a crinme is elevated because of that particular
cl ass of person. He believes the elevated level is justified for
police officers and energency responders because they nust put
t hensel ves in harns way.

SENATOR FRENCH shared Senator Ogan's concerns and said that
j udges know when an outrageous crine has happened in their
comunities, which could include a crine against a referee.

CHAIR SEEKINS jested that he has found sports officials to be
very aggravating at tines.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he did not intend to distribute the
anmendnent and was asking to determne the correct policy call.

SENATOR FRENCH noved to adopt Amendnent 1, which reads as
fol | ows.

AMENDMENT 1

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
To: CSSB 170(JUD) Work Draft 23-CGS1024\1 4/1/04

Page 9, line 15

1(4) wth crimnal negligence and when as deternmned by a
chem cal test taken within four hours after the alleged offense

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 2, 2004



was committed, there is 0.05 percent or nore by weight of
al cohol in the person's blood or 50 mlligrans or nore of
al cohol per 100 mlliliters of blood, or when there is 0.05
granms or nore of alcohol per 210 liters of the person's breath,
causes serious physical injury under AS 11.81.900(55)(B) to
anot her person by neans of a dangerous instrunent.

CHAI R SEEKI NS objected for the purpose of discussion and asked
for a cross-reference to the correct page in version |

SENATOR FRENCH said it would replace |anguage on page 9, line
15. He then said the idea is to avoid prosecuting the "cell
phone, make-up application on slippery roads" scenarios that
could cause car collisions that mght result in a charge of
assault in the third degree. It narrows the scope of the bill to
t hose instances where there's enough al cohol involved to justify
a finding of crimnal negligence. He said in his experience, .05
percent amounts to at |east three or four beers.

MR GUANELI read the definition as foll ows:

Serious physical injury means a physical injury caused
by an act perforned under circunstances that create a
substantial risk of death or physical injury that
causes serious and protracted di sfigurenent,
protracted inpairnent of health, protracted |oss or
i npai rment of the function of a body nenber, organ or
that unlawfully term nates a pregnancy.

He explained that as a practical matter, that often anmounts to
an injury nore serious than a broken |inb because nost juries do
not find a broken linb to be a protracted loss. He said the
qui ntessential exanple of a serious physical injury is soneone
who ends up in a wheel chair.

SENATOR FRENCH said the annotated statutes say that a broken jaw
constitutes a serious physical injury and a grand jury could
find injuries to the eyes and skull to be serious physical
injuries. He said the (a) subsection is nore inclusive and the
(b) subsection is fairly narrow.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Ms. WIlson to testify.
M5. LINDA WLSON, Deputy Director, Public Defender Agency,
Departnent of Admnistration, said the effort made to trim down

the definition of "serious physical injury" is in subsection
(a), which requires physical injury caused by an act perforned

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 2, 2004



under circunstances that create a substantial risk of death. She
said anything involving a car accident creates a risk of death
so that could apply to any physical injury that resulted from an
accident. She said the definition in (a) is overly broad and
would include any scratch or bunp that resulted from a car
accident. She said limting it to the (b) definition gets to the
targeted group - that being people who sustain serious physica
injuries. She disagrees with M. Guaneli about what qualifies as
a serious physical injury. She added that including the alcoho
requirenent pinpoints the targeted group and avoids the
uni nt ended group, such as cell phone users.

SENATOR OGAN asked why it is narrowed to alcohol use only and
does not include drug use. He noted he would like it to apply to
mari j uana and control |l ed substance use.

MR. GUANELI said, in regard to Senator French's coment that
this would avoid prosecutions based on cell phone use, for
exanple, he does not believe the state prosecutes anyone for
collisions caused by cell phone use. Senator QOgan introduced a
bill several years ago to at least allow the state to revoke a
person's license if no crime was commtted but a person died as
a result of a crash. He spoke to Senator Ogan at that tine about
people driving too fast on slippery roads and causing a fatality
as a result. The state sinply cannot prosecute those cases
because that behavior does not rise to a prosecution |evel under
crimnal negligence and the standard nmental states. As a result,
Senator Qgan's bill was enacted but it only gives a judge the
discretion to take away soneone's license. He said there is a
much nore serious offense called crimnally negligent hom cide
but those prosecutions are very rare. He pointed out that
prosecutors nationw de sinply cannot prosecute every driver in a
car crash that causes a death. Cases of death that result from
car crashes are handl ed under wongful death in civil courts or
t hrough i nsurance cl ai ns.

MR. GUANELI said with respect to narrowng the definition of
serious physical injury, Ms. WIlson indicated that the elenents
could be nmet by mnor injuries resulting from a car crash. He
remarked that a horrendous car crash caused by a person acting
with crimnal negligence where the car is conpletely mangl ed but
only mnor injuries are sustained is equally deserving of
puni shnment because it is only fortuitous that the person wal ked
away WwWith mnor injuries. The Departnment of Law favors the
original version. He believes this version is nuch too narrow
and will frustrate the departnent because it will be unable to
prosecut e.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 2, 2004



M5. WLSON said she sees two parts to Senator Ogan's question
about controll ed substances. She expl ai ned:

Control |l ed substances, | believe, if you're driving I
believe wth a controlled substance other than
al cohol, | think you probably could be charged under
the inpairment statute, which would probably qualify
for reckless. | think you could address controlled
subst ances beyond alcohol, which seened to be the
targeted group with that. On the question about that
the DAs or the prosecutors cannot prosecute, we never
prosecut e, I certainly want to caution against
adopting that approach. The DAs have an incredible
anmpunt of discretion and, wunfortunately, sonetines
they charge things - they overcharge and |I don't think
anybody can dispute that. | keep hearing over and over
again 'trust wus, trust wus, trust us' but our |aws
should not depend on the discretion of a DA
especially a single DA, These things are and can be
over char ged and to say that they're not IS
di si ngenuous.

| haven't wanted to bring up the Wally Taslow (ph)
case but that's a perfect exanple of overcharging. You
had a vehicul ar accident, not nuch injury, and it was
charged much higher than it should have been so to say
that it's not overcharged is not very believable.

SENATOR OGAN said because he believed sone cases were
under charged, he introduced legislation 10 years ago. He said it
took himeight years to get that |aw changed.

CHAIR SEEKINS said in trying to figure out what is fair and
right, regarding public safety, that to encourage selective
prosecution is very dangerous. He said he nmust feel confortable
that the intent of the legislation is the right thing to do
before he will pass the bill out of comrittee. He said he is
attenpting to do the right thing, not  what is |east
controversi al

CHAI R SEEKINS rem nded nenbers that Amendnent 1 was pendi ng and
asked if there was further discussion.

SENATOR FRENCH t hanked nenbers for the discussion on Anendnent 1
but said he was persuaded by M. Guaneli that the law as witten

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 2, 2004



can be used in the right way. He then wthdrew Amendnent 1
wi t hout obj ection.

SENATOR OGAN noved to adopt Anmendnent 2, which reads as foll ows.

AMENDMENT 2

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
To: CSSB 170(JUD) Work Draft 23-GS1024\ | 4/ 1/ 04
Page 3, line 9:

Sec. 4 AS 04.11.491 is anended by adding a new subsection to
read:

(g) If a municipality or established village has adopted a
| ocal option under (a)(1),(2),(3), or (4), or (b)(1),(2), or (3)
of this section, the nunicipality or established village, as
part of the local option question or questions placed before the
voters, may

(1) adopt an anmpunt of al coholic beverages that may be
inported that is |less than the anmounts set out in AS
04. 11. 150(9) ;

(2) adopt an anount of alcoholic beverages that would
give rise to a presunption that the person possessed the
al coholic beverages for sale; the anpbunts adopted under this
paragraph may be | ower than those set out in AS 04.11.010(c);

(3) adopt an increased penalty for furnishing or
delivery of alcoholic beverages to persons under 21 pursuant to
AS 04.16.051(d)(3).

Page 4, lines 17-19:

Sec. 7 AS 04.16.051(d) is anended to read
(d) A person acting with crimnal negligence who violates
this section is guilty of a class C felony if
(1) within the five years preceding the violation, the
person has been previously convicted under
(A) this section; or
(B) a law or ordinance of this or another
jurisdiction wth elenments substantially simlar to this
section; [OR]
(2) the person who receives the alcoholic beverage
negligently causes serious physical injury to or the death of
another person while wunder the influence of the alcoholic

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 2, 2004



beverage received in violation of this section; in this
par agr aph,

(A "negligently"” means acting wth civil
negl i gence; and

(B) "serious physical injury" has the neaning
given in AS 11.81.900; or

(3) the violation occurs within the boundaries of a

muni cipality or the perineter of an established village that has
adopted a local option and the increased penalty of a class C
fel ony under AS 04.11.491.

CHAI R SEEKI NS obj ects for the purpose of discussion.

SENATOR OGAN says this amendnent nakes it a local option for
people who live in areas who have voted to be “dry” to ratchet
up the penalties for offenders who supply alcohol to mnors.
Since the conmmunity has identified alcohol as a particular
problem the “local option” part of the legislation would allow
the local conmunity to put it on the ballot and, for exanple,
raise the offense froma m sdeneanor to a felony.

M5. WLSON agreed that is exactly what the anendnent does.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Ms. Wl son to provide an explanation for the
anendnent and t he purpose for proposing it.

M5. WLSON said the point of the anmendnment was to let the |oca
option area choose how to deal with those who supply al cohol to
a mnor. It lets |ocal areas choose whether or not they want to
ratchet up the offense froma m sdeneanor to a class C fel ony.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked Ms. Wlson if she is famliar with the
definition of an established village under statute, and pointed
out that it is any group of 25 people. He asked her if she
believes that we should allow any group of 25 people, at their
own discretion, to vary the state penalty.

M5. WLSON suggested tightening the definition of an established
vil | age.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the nunicipality or village could set
the infraction above a Cass C felony, i.e., if the local option
areas could | abel the offense as a Class B or Class A felony.

M5. WLSON referred to section 7, which allows an increased
penalty if there are prior convictions. She suggested adding an

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 2, 2004



option in section 4 to allow for increased penalties and then
limt the increase.

SENATOR OGAN recogni zed that |ocal areas nust already adopt the
local option as law and questioned the «criteria of an
“established village” in regards to the ages of the village
menbers. In that light, he is hesitant to extend too nuch
| eeway to village nenbers for the purpose of |law interpretation.

SENATOR FRENCH proposed to anend the anendnent in Sec. 4,
subparagraph 3, to read “adopt an increased penalty of a ‘C
felony for furnishing or delivery of alcoholic beverages to
persons under 21 pursuant to AS 04.16.051(d)(3)".

CHAI R SEEKINS asked and heard no objections but voiced concern
regarding the change of the level of penalty and asked for
further discussion.

MR. GUANELI said he understands from nost village |eaders that
there are two purposes for the local option |aws, which create
i mredi ate benefit to village society: 1) stops donestic abuse
and crinmes by adults therefore |essening social problens and 2)
t eaches young people that use of alcohol is unacceptable. The
| ong-term goal of the villagers is to limt the use of alcohol
especially to young people. The original draft reflects these
goal s. Dry villagers are particularly offended by people
supplying alcohol to mnors since they nade the deliberate
effort to vote the village dry. He feels this current draft
puts an additional burden on the villagers to hold additional
el ections.

TAPE 04-32 SIDE B

MR. GUANELI added that he thought we ought to uphold the intent
of the villagers who voted to go dry; it ought to be an
aggravat ed of fense and recogni zed as such.

CHAIR SEEKINS iterated that he is nobst interested in the
anmendnent, which could allow unincorporated groups to have too
much | eeway. He al so questioned the need to revise the current
penal ty.

SENATOR OGAN stated the people in the villages should have the
ability of self-determnation to decide whether they have a
probl em and how to address the problem Thi s anmendnent serves
t hat purpose.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- April 2, 2004



SENATOR FRENCH clarified that currently, the law states the
first offense is a msdeneanor and the second offense is a
f el ony. He states that the effect of the anendnent basically
allows | ocal areas the option of raising the level of the first
offense to a felony or leaving it as a m sdeneanor.

SENATOR FRENCH added - to the point that the | ocal areas decide
whet her they want to be dry or not. He stated support for the
anmendnent .

SENATOR OGAN opined that he is willing to give the |ocal option
but would rather the state set the penalties.

A roll call vote was taken. Anmendnent 2 failed with Senators
Qgan and French voting in favor and Senators Therriault and
Seeki ns voting agai nst.

CHAIR SEEKINS referred to a letter received from Legal Services
and the Revisor of Statutes regarding section 32 of the current
bill.

AMENDMENT 3

“*Sec 32 AS 47.12.310 (c) is anended to read:

(c) A state or municipal | aw enforcenent agency

(1) shall disclose information regarding a case that
is needed by the person or agency charged wth
making a prelimnary investigation for t he
information of the court under this chapter;

(2) may disclose to the public information regarding
a crimnal offense in which a mnor is a suspect,
victim or witness if the mnor is not identified
by the disclosure;

(3) my disclose to school officials information
regarding a case as may be necessary to protect
the safety of school students and staff or to
enabl e t he school to provi de appropriate
counseling and supportive services to neet the
needs of a mnor about whom information s
di scl osed.

(4) O a state or nunicipal agency or enployee nay
disclose to the public information regarding a
case as may be necessary to protect the safety of
the public; and

(5 My disclose to a victim or to the victins
i nsurance conpany information, including copies

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- April 2, 2004



of reports, as necessary for civil litigation or
insurance clainms pursued by or against the
victim?”

CHAI R SEEKINS heard no objections to the anmendnment, recognized
there was also an anendnent to the title and directed the
commttee's focus to Section 25, which was also included as a
concern in the nmenmorandum from Legal Services.

MR. GUANELI expressed concern over the suggested revised wording
and woul d prefer to have tine to review it. H's nmain concern was
about interpretation in a court of law and he wants to ensure
that the |language witten in the docunent is clear

CHAIR SEEKINS asked that Amendnent 3 be withdrawn for the
nonment .

CHAI R SEEKINS asks for public testinony and hearing none SB 170
is noved out of conmittee.

#

CHAI R SEEKI NS announces a 3-m nute recess.

"#SB319
SB 319 CLAI M5 AGAI NST HEALTH CARE PROVI DERS

CHAI R SEEKINS announced SB 319 to be wup for consideration.
Chair Seekins admtted the bill is not inits final form

KATHY DALE, a CPA from Anchorage, said she was representing
herself and famly as victins of nedical malpractice. She
opposes SB 319, particularly Section 3(d). She testified
regarding her husband and his routine rotator cuff surgery.
During surgery her husband suffered permanent brain damage due
to lack of oxygen to his brain. She stated that it was only due
to being able to file a lawsuit that they were able to discover

what had caused the brain damage. She said the bill protects
doctors and harnms the citizens of Al aska. She asked that the
cap not be lowered and referred to the Medical Indemity

Corporation of Al aska (M CA) and suggested that the $250,000 cap
adjusted for inflation would exceed $800,000 in today’ s econony.
She said the stock market crash, along with Enron, Tyco, and
Wrld-com type fraud caused insurance conpanies to raise
premuns in order to increase funds. She conpared this with the
state's problem wth the PERS system and asked to consider
formng a fund such as M CA

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- April 2, 2004



SENATOR OGAN stated he is famliar wth MCA but asked for
clarification.

M5. DALE explained it as a self-insurance pool that the doctors
owned and the state |oaned them funds to get started. She said
the pool was so successful that the dividend was too high and
woul d inpact the doctor’s taxes so they asked that the pool be
di sbanded.

SENATOR OGAN asked if any other states have that type of system
MS. DALE answered she is not aware of any others.

CHAIR SEEKINS stated that he is famliar with the history of
M CA, and referred to a conversation with Senator Taylor that
confirmed Ms. Dale’s testinony regarding M CA

SENATOR FRENCH asked Ms. Dale to talk about the financial inpact
resulting fromher husband’ s injury.

MS. DALE said her husband was a business ower. He is no |onger
capable of doing even snmall jobs around the house. He is no
| onger enployable, has limted nenory, and needs daily care. He
can drive a car

CHAIR SEEKINS asked for clarification on M. Dale’ s testinony
and asked, “Was the difference in cap how you were able to
retain representation to bring the | awsuit?”

MS. DALE answered yes.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked, “Wat nade the difference, the fee that
woul d retain the attorney?”

M5. DALE answered no and stated it was the out-of-pocket
expenses to send the records to experts in the field of
anest hesi ol ogy to revi ew what happened.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked who sent the records out.

MS. DALE answered “our attorneys.”

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked for any further comment and clarified that

Ms. Dale was only representing herself and famly and travel ed
to Juneau at her own expense.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- April 2, 2004



CHAI R SEEKINS invited anyone else fromout of town to testify at
this tine so that they would not be inpacted if the commttee
hol ds this over.

DONNA MCCREADY testified and identified herself as a plaintiff's
attorney who does sone nedical mal practice work. She stated she
is representing the Al aska Acadeny of Traw ers. She said there
are 2 different positions 1) those who want to | ower the cap and
2) those who think there is not a nedical malpractice crisis.
She placed herself in the second category. She asked how the
commttee figures out [how to conme out] its position on the

bill. She stated there is no data to support that Al aska has a
medi cal mal practice crisis, no data to support the statenent
that doctors are leaving the state due to this. She suggest ed

that tons of data support the fact that mal practice carriers are
doing very well financially and that there are two nmain carriers
in this state NORCAL and M EC (ph). She handed out material to
commttee nmenbers showing the financial status of both carriers
and pointed out a report from the Legislative Research
Departnent that shows data to support her claim of an increase
of doctors actively practicing in Al aska. She cited Providence
| nsurance information, which shows that 70% of doctors
practicing in Alaska are not recruiting doctors to work in the
state but the 30% who are do not have trouble doing so. She
stated that legislative research shows that doctors are
attracted to working in Alaska because we don’'t have nanaged
care here.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he has seen nuch of this information before
but also recognizes they have never received one of the
docunents that she distributed, although the docunents say they
were delivered on Dec 18. He said he cannot use this data
because it isn't detailed enough. “Soneone threw ne a pitch,
but not where | can hit it.”

M5. MCCREADY referred to the tort reform of 1997 and suggested
the commttee ook to the Division of Insurance to explain the
nunbers.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he appreciated her bringing in the data and
has seen nuch data regarding this issue but nobst of it is

excer pt ed. He asked that all parties submt to the conmttee
good data with the conplete report, not just “page 9 page 13,
page 15.” He says he sees a huge gap between the nunber of

| i censed doctors and the nunber of practicing doctors.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- April 2, 2004



M5. MCCREADY responded that in terns of the nedical board, a
survey with physicians 55 & older were asked if they felt their
specialties were underrepresented and 66% answered no.

CHAI R SEEKINS said licensed may not nean practicing and he does

not want to argue that point. He said the commttee has one
nore wtness who needs to speak today. He assured his
willingness to | ook at all the data.

SENATOR FRENCH thanked M. MCready for her testinony and
referred to a March 26 report regarding the old M CA Corporation
on Page 8, which says an average of 210 doctors per year have
been licensed to work in the state. He said new doctors don’t
usually get a license and then becone inactive.

CHAI R SEEKINS recognized that they can be licensed in other
states or nunerous states even and don’t ever practice here.

M5. MCCREADY pointed out that sonme doctors might practice in
nore than one state.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he knows a couple of doctors who conme up for
vacation and are specialists so they can nake a little noney
while they are here.

MR. RICHARD LQU E said he worked 20 years at BP as a scientist
and auditor and stated his doctor did not inform him of risks.
He asked the commttee to vote no on SB 3109.

SENATOR OGAN asked M. Louie if he was the gentleman who had a
bl ood clot during an aircraft flight.

MR. LOU E answered yes.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked for any further questions for M. Louie
Hearing none, he advised that the commttee wants as much
testi nony as possible. He stated that the House is working on

it as well and he doesn’t want to duplicate the effort.
#

"#SB323

SB 323 WORKERS COVPENSATI ON_ AND CONTRACTORS

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- April 2, 2004



CHAI R SEEKI NS announced SB 323 to be up for consideration and
infornmed the commttee of a proposed CS, version\H.

SENATOR OGAN asked to have the changes expl ai ned before a notion
i's made.

CHAI R SEEKI NS expl ained the changes are in |anguage to nmake it
clear that iif a subcontractor does not carry worknen's
conpensation insurance, the contractor is liable for it. If the
contractor does not carry workers conpensation insurance then
the project owner would be responsible. The next part clarifies

who is a contractor and who is a project owner. He says we do
have statutes that require contractors to be registered with the
state. He states the intent of the bill is very clear

M5. PAMELA LABCLLE said the Chanmber of Comrerce suggested the
amendnents that are contained in this commttee substitute for
the purpose of clarification. Di scussions wth mny parties
identified that the |anguage caused confusion, which is now
clarified. She says they want to nake certain that al
interested parties in a project will assure their enployees are
covered. She cited instances where injured enployees received
wor ker’s conpensation and then later under tort law and filed
suits against other interested parties who were not clearly
covered under the worker’s conpensation unbrell a.

| think no one intended the worker’s conpensation |aw
to be used this way. The idea is the worker be covered
for their work-related |losses. It’s also inportant for
the safety factor because the only way the project
owner could stay out of the issue was if they were not
actively involved. They could not assess or assure
that the contractor and subcontractor had good safety
practices because, in so doing, they becane an
i nvol ved person or involved party and they were then
able to be sued because they did not directly have
conpensation coverage or had not assured that the
other parties all had coverage. And so that was the
purpose of the bill is to nmake sure that everybody in
the chain was involved and insured. And secondly to
elimnate the ability for them to go back and double
dip and collect paynents from two sources, from both
the worker’s conpensation |aw and the courts for tort.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked for questions.

SENATOR FRENCH sai d:

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- April 2, 2004



| go back to a letter we got from M. Jack Mller a
nonth or so ago regarding how this bill would change
the obligation of parties to procure worknman' s
conpensati on coverage and in his letter he said, ‘The
bill would have no effect on the obligation of parties
to procure workman's conpensation coverage. As you
know with very few exceptions, current law requires
all enpl oyees. ..’

Tape 04-33 Side A

SENATOR FRENCH continued and said you're required to carry
wor ker’ s conpensation and that requirenment is not affected by SB
323. He wondered whether sonething in the CS has changed the
obligation of the parties to get worker’s conpensati on coverage.

CHAIR SEEKINS said, “M. MIller is online but | don't think so.”

MS. LABOLLE said no it does not change that. The enpl oyers have
to have worker’s conpensati on cover age.

SENATOR FRENCH said he has difficulty with the bill in that you
get no nore coverage but the worker is giving up his ability to
sue project owners who may or may not be covering him wth
wor ker’s conpensation. He said what the worker is getting is no
nore coverage in exchange for giving up his right to sue in
tort.

CHAI R SEEKI NS sai d absol utely not.

SENATOR FRENCH said it strikes himthat the worker is giving up
his right to sue in tort in exchange for no nore coverage. He
doesn’t see how a worker gains anything with this bill

CHAI R SEEKINS stated that he has seen a nunber of instances that
would relate to this bill, such as cases where soneone clains to
be a sole proprietor and then later clains to be an enployee.
He goes on to say that the project owner who hires a contractor
or a contractor who hires a subcontractor wll have to nmake sure
that workmen’s conpensation exists because if they do not, the
proj ect owner has to provide it.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked for M. MIler online.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- April 2, 2004



MR. JACK MLLER, attorney for the State Chanber of Comrerce,
said that even though state l|law requires everyone to have
wor ker’ s conpensati on doesn’t mnmean they all do. By extending the
obligation to provide worknen's conpensation coverage all the
way up the project line to the project owner does enhance the
benefits to the enployees who suffer injuries. Under current
| aw because of tort <claim potential, project owners and
contractors all refuse to take an integrated approach to project
safety. He thinks the law is inportant because it gives an
incentive for all parties involved in the project to integrate
their safety practices and reduce work related injuries.

CHAI R SEEKINS announced the need to do sone housekeeping and
asked for a notion to consider the proposed CS, |abeled version
H, before the commttee.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to adopt version H, dated 4/1/04, as
t he worki ng docunent before the commttee.

CHAI R SEEKI NS heard no objections. He responded to M. Mller’s
announcenent that he does not have a copy of version H by
offering to get him a copy. He asked M. MIller to respond to
Senator French’s question regarding what is an enployee getting
by not being able to sue soneone up the |ine.

MR MLLER said they are getting tw things: 1) if their
enpl oyer does not have worker’s conp coverage that obligation is
transferred to the contractor and the project owner. Says there
are situations where this has happened before and current |aw
does not address that; 2) this is an opportunity to get rid of
the disincentive for project owners, contractors, and sub-
contractors to alienate thenselves as far as state work
practices go. This allows participants to coordinate safety
activities. He believes this is an inportant opportunity to
dramatically reduce work related injuries.

SENATOR OGAN asked how this affects a honmeowner building his own
house who has a sub-contractor do a few things.

MR. MLLER said it excludes anyone who is a project owner who is
not engaged in business. A honeowner is not liable under this
stat ute.

MS. EDEN LARSON identified herself as President and CEO of the

Associ ated Builders and Contractors, an association with over
160 nenber conpanies who enploy approxinmately 5000 enployees

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- April 2, 2004



t hroughout the state. She supports SB 323 and adds further
comrent on Ms. LaBolle’s statenents.

What happens to a contractor when an enpl oyee receives
a workman's conpensation claim and then pursues tort
remedies thru the project owner, the project owner in
nost cases today has included in his contract with the
contractor an indemification agreenent. \WWat happens
is that if the tort claimis successful the contractor
is then liable to the project owner to reinburse and
indemmify the project owner for the cost of that tort
settlenment. The contractor is then consistently caught
paying both the conpensation costs as well as the
court costs. And this is a renedy to that problemthe
situation that occurs regularly for construction

t oday.
Chair Seekins asked for any further testinony. He said they are
not going to nove this bill at this tine. Having no ot her
W t nesses, Chair Seekins announced they will carry the bill over
and adjourned the judiciary commttee.
#

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- April 2, 2004



